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Addendum #07 to RFP DPR 3790-54
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Department of Parks and Recreation 

Public Safety Technology Modernization (PSTM)
Notice to Prospective Bidders

April 22, 2009
TO ALL INTERESTED BIDDERS:
Re:  REVISED RFP DPR 3790-54 Addendum # 7 
The State has amended the original RFP DPR 3790-54. The attached RFP DPR 3790-54 Addendum # 7 replaces RFP DPR 3790-54 and Addendum 1 through 6 in their entirety.

Bidders are instructed to base their bid on the information contained in the attached RFP DPR 3790-54 Addendum # 7.  The following chart indicates the status of the documents.

	New/Revised/No Change
	Document

	New
	!Reports Inventory.xls

	Revised
	DPR PSTM - Add 7 Changes - 2009-04-13.xls

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix A.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix B - CW.xls

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix B.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix C.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix D.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Appendix E.doc

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - GeoDex & Rolodex Field Lengths.xls

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - GeoDex - Sample Data.xls

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Hardware and Software List.doc

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Radio Technology.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Section VI.xls

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Vehicles and Mobile Device Needs.xls

	No Change
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - Vendor Access to Desktop.doc

	Revised
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - Add 7 - _RFP.doc

	New
	RFP DPR 3790-54 - QA - 2009-04-22.doc


Attachment # CL4 (Contains a list of changes to RFP DPR 3790-54 and Addendum #7)
If you have any questions, please call me at 916-375-4503 or email me at dennis.link@dgs.ca.gov.

Regards, 

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE ON FILE
Dennis W. Link, MS-CIS, PMP
Department of General Services
Procurement Division
707 Third Street, MS 2-209
West Sacramento, CA 95605
dennis.link@dgs.ca.gov
(916) 375-4503
(916) 375-4505 FAX

	Q #
	Page #

File #
	RFP Section
	Question
	Response

	1. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-60
	AR#59
	a) Industry best practices for commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) products are that third-party licenses are transferred at time of software delivery. Is this acceptable to DPR? 

b) Can DPR provide information as to which existing third-party enterprise licenses are already in place?
	a) No, DGS requires the licenses for the Bidder-provided software products and third-party software specific to support the Bidder’s solution, to be transferred only when the full solution is accepted. Refer to RFP Section V.C.4.d.2 (Administrative Requirement #59).

DPR will accept the hardware and system level software (e.g., operating system, database) upon successful installation and verification testing of the hardware. Refer to Administrative Requirement #27 and 68.

Section V.C.6.b.2, Table 11- Contract Payments provides for incremental payment for hardware and system-level software delivery and installation by location.

b) The software providers that have approved Software License Contracts with the State can be found at:

http://www.pd.dgs.ca.gov/masters/SLPContracts.html     

	2. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-7
	AR#3
	Bidder is a privately held company and has submitted a 10-K for year 2005. Additional financial information can be provided under terms of confidentiality. Bidder understands that under State Confidentiality Law, Public Records Act, government section 6250-6276-48, allows for the protection of trade secrets such as financial information of non-public corporations. Does DPR agree to protect any additional provided financial- information under this act?
	The requirement for financial information will be removed in RFP Addendum 7.

	3. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-13
	AR#15
	a) Bidder will provide the five requested references at Final Proposal submission. Is that acceptable? 

b) Will DPR accept the originally provided customer reference form in lieu of asking vendor’s customers to fill out a second form?
	a) Yes, the five (5) references must be in the Final Proposal. 

b) The Bidder needs to resubmit the references. 

	4. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-15
	AR#16
	It is standard that Bidder maximizes the use of all services resources as part of an overall resource management program. Therefore Bidder does not have the flexibility to pre-assign resources to a project that has not yet been scheduled for implementation/delivery. Please note that Bidder has as an Executive Manager assigned to each region who will oversee the project. Will DPR accept the resume of this known Executive Manager, with the understanding that DPR and the Bidder will review all resource assignments as part of the initial Project Kick-off process?
	The Bidder must propose staff based on the Bidder’s best estimate of staff availability at the anticipated Contract Award date (listed in Section I.5: Key Action Dates). 

If the proposed staff are unavailable at a later date, there are provisions to address replacements. Refer to Section V.C.1.i.2 (Administrative Requirement 18). 

	5. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-15

Pg V-17
	AR#17 and AR#18
	It is standard that Bidder maximizes the use of all services resources as part of an overall resource management program. Therefore Bidder does not have the flexibility to pre-assign resources to a project that has not yet been scheduled for implementation/delivery. Please note that Bidder has as an Executive Manager assigned to each region who will oversee the project. Will DPR accept the resume of this known Executive Manager, with the understanding that DPR and the Bidder will review all resource assignments as part of the initial Project Kick-off process?
	Refer to question #4 and the response.  

	6. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-18
	AR#19
	Is Microsoft Project 2003 acceptable for creating/viewing schedule?
	Yes. The State will update this requirement as part of Addendum 7. 

	7. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-24
	AR#25
	During the Fit & Gap process new requirements may surface as well as “gaps” that will require additional products and/or services to meet the new requirement or mitigate the gap. Does DPR acknowledge that the Fit & Gap process may result in change orders that may change price and/or project scope/timeline?   
	The RFP sets the scope for the Bidder’s responsibility. The Bidder is not obligated to any items outside the scope of RFP. 

During the Fit/Gap Analysis and Site Review performed by the Bidder, the Bidder and DPR will confirm the needs at each location. If there are changes or items discovered as a result of the Fit/Gap Analysis and/or Site Review, it will be handled by a change order or a contract amendment. 

	8. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-26
	AR#28
	Is manual Regression Testing acceptable?
	Yes. The State will update this requirement as part of Addendum 7. 

	9. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-27
	AR#30
	Industry standards for RMS response times are:

---Simple query and retrieval at three seconds.

---Generation of standard reports will vary dependent on both the specificity of the query and the number of records meeting the query criteria.

---Complex query and retrieval involving a search based on at leave five different criteria will vary and are dependent on both the specificity of the query and the number of records meeting the query criteria. 

a) Are these RMS response times acceptable to DPR?

b) Is six months of data stored on the live production database acceptable to the State?
	a) The requirement will be updated in RFP Addendum 7.
b) Six months of stored data is not acceptable. 


	10. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-30
	AR#31
	Typically during COTS product evaluations, vendors (or customer) are not required to go through a time-consuming and expensive load testing scenario.  COTS products, by their very nature, have well-established a proven scalability metrics that can be validated through customer references at similarly sized agencies.  Also, since validation of system performance can only truly be accomplished on the delivered system on the customer equipment and network, a ‘load test’ outside of that environment is not representative.  Does DPR agree that it can validate a vendor’s scalability and performance through existing customer site visits and/or calls?
	Confidence in the Bidder’s product’s ability to withstand the load will be accomplished by the following:
The Bidder will provide load test results from a previous installation of equal or greater size (in terms of peak transactions per hour for CAD, RMS and MAS) and having approximately the same hardware specification and configuration. 

The Bidder shall develop load testing scenarios and scripts that can be repeated to support load testing. The load tests must simulate up to two (2) times the maximum load anticipated for this system.

In addition, manual load testing will be accomplished by the combination of Bidder personnel guidance and DPR personnel at each communications center.

The vendor must correct any resulting deficiencies that fall under their areas of responsibilities.  

The requirement will be revised in RFP Addendum 7. 

	11. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-31
	AR#32
	Does DPR agree that the number of User Acceptance Tests will be based on the specific architecture bid?
	Yes, depending where the equipment is located, the number of User Acceptance Tests may vary. 

	12. 
	RFP,

Pg V-35
	AR#37
	a) In the delivery of COTS products it is standard business practice for Bidder to deliver standard product and training documentation, and any tools required for the modification of these documents by the customer.  Through this process the customer can insert the customer’s specific workflows, nomenclature and policies which would not normally be part of the Bidder’s sphere of control. Does DPR accept this approach? 

b) As-built documents do not generally apply to COTS software that is modified through configuration parameters and not through customization of core product. Does DPR accept this approach?  
	a) Yes, DPR will insert the appropriate items in the provided off the shelf documentation, as necessary. 

b) The definition of As-Builts has been clarified in the RFP Appendix D Glossary. For DPR, As-Builts are defined as a description of the configuration for the installed hardware, including the manufacturer, model and settings, such as CPU, BIOS settings, installed software product(s), version, software configuration settings for system level software, and network diagrams. 

It does not include software configuration settings for the Bidder’s software product(s); the software settings for the Bidder’s software product are expected to be documented in the standard installation procedures which are to be provided with the COTS product manuals. 

	13. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-38
	AR#41
	In the delivery of COTS products it is standard business practice for Bidder to deliver standard product and training documentation, and any tools required for the modification of these documents by the customer.  Through this process the customer can insert the customer’s specific workflows, nomenclature and policies which would not normally be part of the Bidder’s sphere of control. Does DPR accept this approach? 

As-built documents do not generally apply to COTS software that is modified through configuration parameters and not through customization of core product. Does DPR accept this approach?  
	Refer to question #13 and the response. 

	14. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-39
	AR#42
	a) In the delivery of COTS products it is standard business practice for Bidder to deliver standard product and training documentation, and any tools required for the modification of these documents by the customer.  Through this process the customer can insert the customer’s specific workflows, nomenclature and policies which would not normally be part of the Bidder’s sphere of control. Does DPR accept this approach? 

b) As-built documents do not generally apply to COTS software that is modified through configuration parameters and not through customization of core product. Does DPR accept this approach?  

c) Does DPR stipulate that the GIS data being provided for this application meet industry best practices for use in mission critical computer aided dispatching applications, in terms of the accuracy of both the minimum data attribution as well as the geospatial accuracy of the data?  
d) If not, will DPR compensate Bidder for any and all work needed to ensure the data meets these minimum standards?

e) Please note that Security Monitoring will be handled on-site by bidder staff and will be limited to the CAD, RMS, and MAS systems. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	a) and b) Refer to question #13 and the response. 

c) DPR will remove requirement H.11.8 as part of RFP Addendum 7. Refer to question #47 (below). 

d) DPR will be responsible for cleansing the data and addressing any load errors. The Bidder is responsible for loading the data and identifying the load errors and working with DPR to analyze errors. 

e) DPR agrees to the security monitoring approach. 



	15. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-46

Pg V-48
	AR#43 and #44
	a) Bidder suggests that the Enterprise license be stipulated as only applying to the ‘five allied agencies’ referenced by DPR.  Can DPR specifically identify those five agencies? 

b) This requirement calls out System Regression Testing Tools as a deliverable.  If DPR accepts the requirement modification identified in AR #28 will this requirement be modified to remove the System Regression testing software deliverable?
	a) DPR will identify the allied agencies as part of RFP Addendum 7. They are the Department of Fish and Game, the National Parks Service, the Mountains Recreation and Conservation Authority, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and the Department of Development Services. 
b) Yes. The requirement for automated regression testing will be removed as part of RFP Addendum 7. 

	16. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-50
	AR#47
	Addendum 5, Appendix C shows the following listing of attachments which will be part of the Agreement in the following order:

Attachment A – Statement of Work

Attachment B – Response to RFP DPR 3790-54 (Volumes I and II)

Attachment C* - IT General Provisions (Revised and Effective 04/12/2007)

Attachment D* - IT Purchase Special Provisions (dated 02/08/2007) 

Attachment E* - IT Software License Special Provisions (dated 01/21/2003) 

Attachment F* - IT Maintenance Special Provisions (dated 01/21/2003)

Items shown with the Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. These documents can be viewed at http://www.pd.dgs.ca.gov/modellang/ModelContracts.htm and http://www.pd.dgs.ca.gov/modellang/ITModules.htm

Bidder submits that this listing represents an order of precedence that is consistent with Industry Best Practices for the delivery of COTS products.  Does DPR agree?
	The order of precedence is as listed in section 4 of the DGS Form STD 213 for each contract in Appendix C. 

 

	17. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-51

Pg V-52
	AR$48 and #50
	Due to the mission critical nature of the systems being provided under this contact, and consistent with industry best practices for the support of these systems, Bidder submits that warranty should start upon productive use of the components by DPR.  This is based on the extraordinary level of support that must be provided by bidder once ‘live’ operations begin and the life-safety issue associated with the use of these systems. Bidder understands the need for DPR to have ongoing protection/leverage to ensure bidder completes all work post-cutover. Bidder submits that DPR has appropriate leverage through the performance bond/holdbacks.  Does DPR agree with this approach?
	No. The warranty will begin once the last Communications Center goes live in order to ensure the system meets the specified performance and failover requirements.


	18. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-53

Pg V-55
	AR#52 and #53
	a) Bidder submits that the requirements in AR #52 represent requirements that go beyond those typically found in the MSA.  This would include such activities as patch application, security upgrades, and normal, onsite system maintenance.  Does DPR agree that the tasks listed in AR #52 will be performed under a combination of both the MSA as well as the Onsite Resident Systems Engineer Agreement?

b) In regards to the requirement defining the failover process:  Vendor submits that the methodology and level of failover will be governed by the agree-to system architecture accepted by DPR.  As such this requirement should not be part of AR #52. Does DPR agree?

c) For AR #53:  Does DPR accept a user login to a vendor-supplied online Helpdesk/Problem Tracking system in lieu of a weekly written help desk report?

d) Some Major System Upgrades could require resources that extend beyond those provided as part of the onsite Resident Systems Engineering agreement.   Does DPR understand that there could be an additional cost for upgrade support services if these non-resident resources are needed?

e) As noted in bidders question on AR #43, does DPR agree that the Enterprise license will apply only to the named ‘allied agencies’?
	a) Yes, the tasks may be performed under a combination of the MSA and Onsite Resident Agreement. 

b) DPR will move the failover elements from Administrative Requirement #52 to the failover requirement (Administrative Requirement #43a). DPR will define the basic failover architecture. 

c) DPR will accept a user login in lieu of a weekly written report. Administrative Requirement #53 will be updated in RFP Addendum 7. 

d) DPR does not agree to the additional costs for upgrade support services. DPR must know what the annual costs for maintenance are from year to year to support annual budgeting requirements. The Bidder must define the staffing and costs necessary to account for these types of upgrades services as part of the Bidder’s proposed costs. 

e) Yes. The enterprise licensing will apply only to the allied agencies identified in RFP Addendum 7. Refer to the response to question #16.



	19. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-57
	AR#54 and #55
	a) Bidder stipulates that it agrees to provide updates/changes for any CLETS/NCIC mandated changes, assuming that the DPR has the state-specific product (interface to NCIC) on a current maintenance contract. Major new requirements such as protocol changes are excluded. Bidder must have at least 180 days lead time before the mandated changes take effect, and will coordinate with the next product release.  Does DPR agree to this stipulation?

b) On AR #55:  Bidder clarifies that it agrees to provide updates/changes for any Bidder-provided State or Federal forms, reports, or screens, assuming that the DPR has the specific product (for example, CHP 555 reports) on a current maintenance contract.  Major new requirements such as entirely new sections or a whole new page to an existing report are excluded.  Bidder must have at least 180 days lead time before the mandated changes take effect, and will coordinate with the next product release. Does DPR agree to this stipulation?
	a) The protocol changes and upgrades must be included as part of the maintenance agreement and pricing. 

b) Major new requirements must be provided to DPR under the terms of the MSA contract within 180 calendar days of providing such requirements to another California law enforcement agency. The change must be implemented prior to the state or federal mandated deadline.

The requirement will be updated as part of RFP Addendum 7. 



	20. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-58
	AR#56
	Bidder has proposed alternative coverage guidelines based on generally accepted practices for mission-critical applications as delivered in the United States.  Does DPR find these proposed changes as acceptable?
	The response times are acceptable, provided there is an escalation number that the Comm Center supervisors have access to in the event of an emergency.

The requirement will be updated as part of RFP Addendum 7. 

	21. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-60

Pg V-61
	AR#58 and 60
	Bidder submits that the delivery of software and hardware, along with the services needed to implement are governed by the documents described in AR #42 and our question tied to AR #42.  As such bidder submits that no additional hardware or software costs should be incurred beyond those identified in our submission and within scope of contract. Does DPR agree?
	The Bidder must be responsible for meeting the requirements as stated in the RFP. If the Bidder requires additional hardware or software due to items not described in the RFP, DPR will exercise a change order or the State will provide the item directly. 

	22. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-60
	AR#59
	Industry best practices for commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) products are that third-party licenses are transferred at time of software delivery. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	Refer to question #1 and the response. 

	23. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-64
	AR#66
	a) Bidder submits that industry practice is that Surety companies will not issue an unconditional letter of bondability prior to a review of the statement of work to determine insurability of the bidder for the work being contracted.  As such Bidder submits that the letter of bondability be allowed conditioned upon the final review of the contract by the Surety company.  Does DPR find this acceptable?  

b) Bidder also submits that common practice is to release the performance bond upon cutover to live operations (this is after essential acceptance testing as determined that the system is capable of supporting live, mission critical functionality). Does DPR agree to this?  

c) Also, please note that common practice is that the cost of the bonding is build into the project cost and is paid by the contracting agency. Does DPR agree to this?
	a) The State will remove the word “unconditional” from Administrative Requirement #66.  The requirement will be updated in RFP Addendum 7.

b) No. The performance bond must be held in effect until final acceptance of the combined CAD, RMS and MAS components. 

c) The State assumes the Bidder considers the cost of bonding as part of estimating and proposing a competitive proposal. 

	24. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-65,

Pg V-67
	AR#67 and 68
	a) Bidder understands that DPR must construct milestone payments that are consistent with services being delivered and/or value received. Bidder submits that these milestones should also allow bidder to maintain a cash flow positive position throughout the project assuming these milestones are met on schedule.  Does DPR agree to this fundamental approach to the construction of the milestone payment schedule?

b) Bidder proposes, based on best business practices, the following payment terms:

The terms of payment shall be net thirty (30) days from the date of invoice, with invoicing to occur upon certification from Bidder that it has successfully completed the milestones in accordance with the milestone payment schedule.  An interest charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is less), prorated on the basis of a thirty (30) day month, may be assessed on delinquent payments

Does DPR accept these terms?
	a) No. DPR has created 31 payment milestones in an attempt to ensure the Bidder receives continual payments, to the extent provided by California laws and regulations. 

b) No. The payment terms contained in the RFP are set by statute. Refer to Government Code 927 (Prompt Payment Act).  



	25. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-68
	AR#69
	a) Bidder understands that DPR currently pays some vendors for ongoing maintenance support in advance as is commonly accepted in the Information Technology and Telecommunications Technology industries.  Will DPR allow bidder to utilize the same practice?  

b) Business practices are that software maintenance payments are billed annually in advance or billed quarterly in advance with a 15% premium. Does DPR accept this?
	a) No, State regulations prevent DPR from paying for services in advance of receipt. Software licenses and maintenance may be paid in advance. The requirement will be clarified in RFP Addendum 7.

b) Administrative Requirement 69 will be changed to reflect that the State will allow for maintenance to be paid either monthly, quarterly or annually in arrears.

	26. 
	RFP,

Pg V-34
	AR#36a
	Bidder understands the peak season scheduling constraints; however,  please confirm that the DPR Core Project Team will be available to bidder during Peak Season to ensure the project stays on as per mutually-agreed upon schedule.
	Yes. The core team will be available. 

	27. 
	RFP, 

Pg IV-11
	Section IV.D.1
	a) Bidders architectural approach is predicated on gaining a better understanding of the overall network performance associated with the network that connects all three communication centers.  Can DPR provide any guidance as to the reliability of the network involved? How often is communications lost between sites? How long are the outages when these losses occur?

b) Most networks that support mission critical systems are required to meet industry best practices for reliability.  This would include alternate paths, dual paths and redundant network components. Does the DPR network provide the level of reliability and architecture necessary to support mission critical applications? Does DPR intent to upgrade any aspect of its communications network to ensure a network capable of supporting mission critical applications?

c) Does DPR recognize that a solution, centralized or distributed can overcome a network not capable of mission critical reliability?

d) If forced to chose, does DPR prefer a configuration that provides for disconnected operations at each site, or a solution that allows for full hot failover of one site to another?
	a) DPR is in the process of redefining the type of architecture required. The network diagram will be updated as part of RFP Addendum 7. Refer to Section IV, Figure 2. 

b) DPR does understand the critical nature of reliability and redundancy necessary to accomplish system reliability. 

c) DPR does understand the critical nature of reliability and redundancy necessary to accomplish system reliability.

d) DPR requires a configuration that allows for full hot failover of one site to another. 

	28. 
	
	Bidder’s Preliminary System Description
	3 – Several sections of the Form were not provided. The Bidder must provide a response to Form A17, Sections 4, 7, 8, 9, and 10. If the requested information is not provided, this Plan will fail the evaluation, and may make the Bidder non-responsive.
	Bidders are required to include a complete narrative response to each item on form A17.  It is not acceptable to only refer to other documents as an answer to the question.  If the information is contained in supporting documentation the Bidder should copy the information from supporting document and insert it into the appropriate section for RFP to review.  

Bidders may indicate the document and page from where the information came allowing DPR the ability to cross check information; however, referencing the location of the information alone is not acceptable.

	29. 
	RFP, 

Pg IX-17
	IX.D.2.b.2 (Preliminary Maintenance Plan)
	Please confirm the DPR’s concern is related to updates to the mobile environment. Currently the mobile application provides for “mobile administrator” which can push out updates to MDCs, exclusive of map updates. Bidder has found that the map is too big for most wireless networks to “handle”. 

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	Yes, this approach is acceptable. 

	30. 
	RFP, 

Pg IX-19
	IX.D.2.b.4 (Sample User Manual, Sample System Administration Manual)
	Bidder agrees to provide Sample user Manuals and Sample System Administration Manuals which will not be distributed to any third-parties. These documents are confidential and copyrighted intellectual property of bidder and protected under California Law. Is this agreeable to State?

Bidder understands that under State Confidentiality Law, Public Records Act, government section 6250-6276-48, allows for the protection of trade secrets of non-public corporations. Does DPR agree to protect any additional provided information under this act?
	The Bidder should submit three (3) hardcopies marked as “confidential” in a sealed envelope that is controlled by DGS and will be returned upon request by the Bidder. 

Refer to Section II.E.1.b: “…However, materials the State considers in its sole opinion to be confidential information (such as confidential financial information submitted to show Bidder responsibility) will be returned upon the request of the Bidder.”

Refer also to articles #37 and 38 of General Provisions (GSPD-401IT) which discuss ownership of intellectual property.  

	31. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt B.1.5
	Agency creation is not provide on the fly; however, provided via the System Administrator Unit creation is supported and can be created on the fly via communication center personnel. Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	Yes. This is acceptable. The requirement will be updated in RFP Addendum 7. 

	32. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt B.3.0
	Bidder can terminate the user privileges but cannot take control of that workstation. Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	Yes. This is acceptable. The requirement will be updated in RFP Addendum 7. 

	33. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt B.3.1.20
	Bidder complies through the CAD product, Please advise if this RMS item is incorrectly provided in the CAD matrix requirements?
	Yes. Requirements B.3.1.19 and B.3.1.20 will be moved to the RMS section (Worksheet D: requirements D.8.0.48, D.8.0.49) as part of RFP Addendum 7. 

	34. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt D.13.1
	Password access by query type and levels of search are not supported. Is this acceptable to the State?
	The requirement will be revised in RFP Addendum 7. 

	35. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt E.1.7 through E.1.9
	Is it the States expectation that the geofile is maintained in CAD, with RMS validating addresses through the CAD geofile process, and then storing the reference data? This reference data is then displayed via the map (thru RMS). If this is the DPR’s expectation, we provide for this functionality.
	Yes, that is the expectation. 

	36. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt G.1.8
	Bidder can lock mobile user from performing mobile functions; however, they are still tracked via AVL. Is this acceptable?
	Yes. This is acceptable. The requirement will be clarified in RFP Addendum 7. 

	37. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt G.6.8
	Bidder has interpreted that DPR desires users to be able to re-sort. Bidder provides for the System Administrator to set a pre-sort; however, the user cannot re-sort. Is this acceptable to the DPR?  
	Yes. This is acceptable. 

	38. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.7.4
	Per industry practices most agencies define what their anti-virus software will be, this is typically not provide via bidder. In addition, business practices for CAD uses are that the anti-virus software is not provided; however, is monitored via the firewall. Does State require that bidder include anti-virus software? Or will DPR provide?
	DPR already owns Symantec anti-virus software and enterprise licenses. The Bidder’s software solution must be compatible with the Symantec client. The requirement will be clarified in RFP Addendum 7. 

	39. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.7.21
	Please further define the State’s intent regarding a quite keyboard. Bidder has proposed industry standard. Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	The requirement will be deleted in RFP Addendum 7.  

	40. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.7.24, H.7.27, and H.7.28
	Please further define the State’s preferred hardware devices.  
	These requirements will be revised in RFP Addendum 7. 

	41. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.7.50
	Please note this item is in regards to a ‘server failure’, not a network failure.  Bidder submits that we are compliant here in that our standard configuration meets five nines reliability and in the case of a server failure we failover to the secondary CAD server. The only time we need to go to manual dispatching (assuming a centralized approach) is if we lose connectivity to the server, not if the server ‘fails’. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	Yes. This is acceptable. The requirement will be revised in RFP Addendum 7. 

 

	42. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.9.17.6
	The system will provide audit of which fields have been modified; however, not the text that was modified in the personnel module. Is this acceptable?
	Yes, this is acceptable for the user profile feature. 

	43. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.9.22
	Bidder has multiple customers in California with access to CLETS via the product interface. The list of CLETS recording requirements are not known, can this requirement be modified to ask if you have any customers active in California using our product to access CLETS? Bidder is approved in the State of California to submit CLETS queries and is currently submitting electronically through one ore more current customers.
	This requirement will be removed in RFP Addendum 7, since it is already addressed in RFP Sections IV and V.

 

	44. 
	Section VI/Appendix E
	Reqmt H.11.8
	Please provide list of external systems that the State will expect bidders to interface with.
	This requirement will be deleted as part of RFP Addendum 7.  

	45. 
	RFP,

Pg VII-5
	VII.B.1.d.3 (Form VII-11)
	Bidder does not provide for Computer Based Training? Has this requirement been removed?
	Yes. The State will remove this form from of RFP Addendum 7.

	46. 
	RFP,

Pg V-64

Pg VIII-10
	Section V.C.6.b.1 (Admin Reqmt #66) and VIII.C.2.b
	Bidder submits that industry practice is that Surety companies will not issue an unconditional letter of bondability prior to a review of the statement of work to determine insurability of the bidder for the work being contracted.  As such Bidder submits that the letter of bondability be allowed conditioned upon the final review of the contract by the Surety company.  Does DPR find this acceptable?  

Bidder also submits that common practice is to release the performance bond upon cutover to live operations (this is after essential acceptance testing as determined that the system is capable of supporting live, mission critical functionality). Does DPR agree to this?  

Also, please note that common practice is that the cost of the bonding is build into the project cost and is paid by the contracting agency. Does DPR agree to this?
	Refer to question #24 and its response. 

	47. 
	RFP,

Pg II-12
	II.C.7.c
	Question:

Will DPR schedule on-site demonstrations for products proposed by Bidders?
	No.  Demonstrations are not included as part of the procurement process. 

	48. 
	RFP,

Pg II-12
	II.C.7.c
	Question:

Will DPR schedule on-site demonstrations for products proposed by Bidders?
	No.  Demonstrations are not included as part of the procurement process. 

	49. 
	RFP,

Pg VII-5
	VII.B.1.d.3
	Question:

Bidder will provide a validity date for all optional items. Services will be quoted for optional items upon request. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The optional items have been removed as part of RFP Addendum 7. 



	50. 
	RFP, 

Pg V-68
	AE#69
	Question:

Per standard business practices Bidder will propose maintenance pricing for years 2-5 which will include an escalation for each year of maintenance services. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	Yes. The Bidder must provide pricing for the five anticipated years of the MSA Contract. The annual increase from year to year cannot exceed five percent (5%). Refer to Section V.C.6.d (Administrative Requirement #69).

	51. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 2
	Article 1
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following changes to Article 1 DEFINITIONS:

a) Sub-letter n) Documentation. Bidder requests the word proprietary in first sentence be changed to proprietary. Is this acceptable to DPR?

b) Sub-letter pp) revise definition to state “…“…means Phone support for all priority levels of software errors is available on normal business days from 7AM – 7PM Central Time, excluding Bidder-observed holidays.  When the software error is considered to be Critical (meaning production is down), then phone support is available after-hours and on Bidder-observed holidays.” Is this acceptable to DPR?
	a) No. The State will not change the definitions. Refer to articles #37 and 38 of General Provisions (GSPD-401IT) which discuss ownership of intellectual property and proprietary information.  

b) No. Refer to revised Administrative Requirement #56 that defines the State’s expectations.  

	52. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 3
	Article 9
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following changes to Article  9 ASSIGNMENT: 

“Neither party shall assign or transfer this Contract nor any rights or obligations thereunder without the express written consent of the other party.  Such written consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bidder may assign its rights and obligations under this Contract without the approval of the State to a third party in connection with a merger, consolidation, liquidation or reorganization of Bidder Corporation or its wholly owned subsidiaries or affiliates.” Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No.  The article already provides that the State will not unreasonably withhold its consent to assign. 

	53. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 3
	Article 11
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following changes to Article  11 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE:      

”……shall apply:

  Statement of Work,

Bidder’s Software License Agreement

 Bidder’s RFP Responses

These General Provisions (as amended)

Contract form, Form 213 (as amended)

All other attachments to the contract.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	Refer to question #17 and its response. 

	54. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 4
	Article 17
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following changes to Article 17 SAMPLES:

Bidder requests this be removed in its entirety as it is not applicable to the intended transaction. Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not remove the article. However, the DPR does not require any samples to be provided for this procurement. 

	55. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 4
	Article 18
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 18 WARRANTY:

“18. WARRANTY

18.1 Bidder Warranty Coverage

Bidder products are warranted, when properly installed, to operate in substantial conformity with product specifications during the initial warranty period and for any extended warranty which may be purchased thereafter.  Bidder products are provided with a non-mission critical warranty (5 days per week, 8 hours per day) up to the point of Sub-system Cutover to live operation.  The cost of this warranty is included in the price of the Subsystem.  After the initial warranty period, the State may purchase a twelve (12) month extended warranty or Maintenance services that include mission-critical support (7 days per week, 24 hours per day).  The cost and length of time for an extended warranty or Maintenance services, if purchased, is reflected in pricing exhibits.  The foregoing warranties shall be for repair, or replacement, at the option of Bidder.  The foregoing warranties are void if failure is due to modification, misuse, abnormal conditions of operation.

18.2 Third-party Warranty Coverage

Third-party products are provided with a pass-thru-warranty from the original manufacturer.

18.3 Warranty Disclaimer

BIDDER DISCLAIMS (TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW) ALL WARRANTIES ON PRODUCTS FURNISHED HEREUNDER, EXCEPT THOSE SPECIFICALLY STATED ABOVE, INCLUDING ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THE ABOVE WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AND REPRESENTS THE FULL AND TOTAL OBLIGATION AND/OR LIABILITY OF BIDDER.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No.  The State will not change the article. 

	56. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 4
	Article 20
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 20 INSURANCE:

Bidder proposes the removal of the last sentence of this Article which requires “additional insured” language in the certificate of insurance.

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. However, the DPR is not requiring the Bidder to add the State as an additional insured. 

	57. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 4
	Article 21
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 21 TERMINATION FOR NON-APPRPRIATION OF FUNDS:

“If the term of this Contract extends into fiscal years subsequent to that in which it is approved, such continuation of the Contract is contingent on the appropriation of funds for such purpose by the Legislature.  If funds to affect such continued payment are not appropriated, the State may terminate this Contract under the terms of Article 22, Termination for the Convenience of the State.”

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. 

	58. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 5
	Article 23
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 23 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:

Bidder proposes to revise Sub article (b) as follows:  “….which in no event will be less than thirty (30) days.”

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article.

	59. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 5
	Article 23
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 23 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:

Bidder proposes to revise Sub article (b) as follows:  “….which in no event will be less than thirty (30) days.”

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	Refer to question #62 and its response. 

	60. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 6
	Article 26
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 26 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:

“Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, in no event shall Bidder be liable for any incidental, consequential, or special damages regardless of the legal theory under which such damages are incurred.  Bidder’s total liability for any and all damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to this Contract from any cause shall not exceed the amounts paid under this Contract. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, no claim, regardless of form, arising out of or in connection with this Contract may be brought by the State more than two (2) years after the cause of action has occurred.”

Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article.

	61. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 6
	Article 30
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 30 REQUIRED PAYMENT DATE:

“The terms of payment shall be net thirty (30) days from the date of invoice, with invoicing to occur upon certification from Bidder that it has successfully completed the milestones in accordance with the milestone payment schedule.  An interest charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is less), prorated on the basis of a thirty (30) day month, may be assessed on delinquent payments.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The payment terms are set by statute. Refer to Government Code 927 (Prompt Payment Act). 

	62. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 7
	Article 36
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 36 DOCUMENTATION: 

Bidder proposes to revise Sub article (a) as follows:  “….to provide the State, at no additional charge, the proprietary manuals and other printed materials generally available with its Commercial products, which are necessary or useful to the State…...”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. Refer to articles #37 and 38 of General Provisions (GSPD-401IT) which discuss ownership of intellectual property and proprietary information.  

	63. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 7
	Article 37
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 37 RIGHTS IN WORK PRODUCTS: 

Bidder takes exception to this Article entirely and proposes the terms and conditions of its Software License Agreement that was included in Draft Proposal, in place of this Article.  
	No. The State will not change the article.

	64. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 8
	Article 40
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 40 EXAMINATION AND AUDIT: 


“Bidder shall provide such employees and inspectors as the State may designate with reasonable access to all sites from which services are performed for the purposes of performing project audits or inspections of Subcontractor’s operations and compliance with this Contract.  Such audits will not include review of Bidder’s financial records.  Bidder shall provide such inspectors any reasonable assistance that they may require.  Such audits shall be conducted in such a way so that the services or services to any other customer of Bidder are not impacted adversely.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article.

	65. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 8
	Article 42
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 42 STOP WORK: 


“Bidder has based its pricing for services to implement the System utilizing the draft schedule shown in the Statement of Work.  In the event that the State causes a delay in the project, through no fault of Bidder, Bidder will be entitled to an equitable adjustment to pricing and schedule.  If a change to the Contract pricing occurs pursuant to this paragraph, Bidder will provide the State with a written change order identifying the pricing impact.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article.

	66. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 10
	Article 52
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 52 RECYCLING: 

Bidder requests this article be removed in its entirety as it is not applicable to bidder as a software vendor.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article, but acknowledges that it may not be applicable to this procurement.

	67. 
	DGS Contract Terms, General Provisions – Information Technology (GSPD-401IT)

Pg 10
	Article 55
	Question:

In General Provisions form GSPD-401IT Bidder proposes the following language replacement  to Article 55 ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING ACT OF 2003: 

Bidder requests this article be removed in its entirety as it is not applicable to bidder as a software vendor.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. This is required by the Electronic Waste Recycling Act of 2003. 

	68. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Software Special Provisions
	Entire section
	Question:

Bidder would want to replace the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE SPECIAL PROVIDSIONS document with Bidder’s terms and conditions of its Software License Agreement which was included as part of the Draft Proposal. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not change the provisions. 

	69. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Software Special Provisions
	Entire section
	Question:

Bidder would want to replace the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE SPECIAL PROVIDSIONS document with Bidder’s terms and conditions of its Software License Agreement which was included as part of the Draft Proposal. Is this acceptable to DPR?
	No. The State will not replace the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE SPECIAL PROVIDSIONS document with Bidder’s terms and condition.

	70. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Purchase Special Provisions

Pg 1
	Article 1
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PURCHASE SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Article 1, LIQUIDATED DAGMAGES. 

Please confirm this requirement has been removed.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	Yes. The administrative requirement has been removed from the RFP. This article is standard language that applies only if Liquidated Damages have been specified in the RFP.

 

	71. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Purchase Special Provisions

Pg 1
	Article 2
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PURCHASE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 2, TITLE TO EQUIPMENT:

Bidder proposes to revise this Article as follows:  “…title to the Equipment shall transfer to the State upon Bidder’s delivery of the Equipment to the State.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. However, refer to the response to question #1 regarding acceptance of hardware and system level software.

	72. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Purchase Special Provisions

Pg 2
	Article 3
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PURCHASE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 3, PRICE DECLINE (APPLICABLE TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS):

Bidder requests this requirement be removed.  Bidder has proposed a firm, fixed price (FFP) in a competitive bid and believes this Article is not applicable to this Contract.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. However, the DPR acknowledges that the paragraph does not appear to apply to fixed price bids.

	73. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Purchase Special Provisions

Pg 2
	Article 4
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PURCHASE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 4, PRICE DECLINE (APPLICABLE TO MANUFACTURER):

Bidder requests this requirement be removed.  Bidder has proposed a firm, fixed price (FFP) in a competitive bid and believes this Article is not applicable to this Contract.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. However, the DPR acknowledges that the paragraph does not appear to apply to fixed price bids.

	74. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Personal Services Special Provisions

Pg 3
	Article 5
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PERSONAL SERVICES SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 5, INVOICING AND PAYMENT FOR SERVICES:

Bidder proposes replacement entirely with following payment term language: 
“The terms of payment shall be net thirty (30) days from the date of invoice, with invoicing to occur upon certification from Bidder that it has successfully completed the milestones in accordance with the milestone payment schedule.  An interest charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is less), prorated on the basis of a thirty (30) day month, may be assessed on delinquent payments.”

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The payment terms are set by statute. Refer to Government Code 927 (Prompt Payment Act). 

	75. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Maintenance Special Provisions

Pg 4
	Article 7
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 7, MAINTENCE CREDIT FOR INOPERATIVE MACHINES:

Bidder requests performance credits be removed.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article. However, the DPR notes that the paragraph does not apply since these items are not identified in the Statement of Work. 

	76. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Maintenance Special Provisions

Pg 5
	Article 9
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 9, RELOCATION OF EQUIPEMENT:

Bidder does not perform equipment moves as part of Maintenance Services and any requested services will be evaluated and priced at the time of request.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	The State will not change the article. However, the DPR does not anticipate any equipment movement and will coordinate the necessary Contractor services as part of a work authorization. 

	77. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Maintenance Special Provisions

Pg 5
	Article 10
	Question:

In the STATE MODEL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,  Article 10, TERMINATION:

Bidder proposes that this be revised entirely to read that the State may only terminate Maintenance Services on the yearly renewal date.  Bidder will send a renewal notification to the State ninety (90) days prior to the end of the yearly service period.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The State will not change the article.

	78. 
	DGS Contract Terms, Maintenance Special Provisions

Pg 5
	Article 9
	Question:

a) Please note that the referenced Third-Party COTS General Provisions (dated 07/15/2008) form was not found on the referenced web site; therefore, bidders requests this requirement/form be removed.
Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	a) The link has been corrected. The correct link is: 

http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/pd/TAS/SICOTSSWGPs071508.pdf


	79. 
	Appendix B
	Form VII-6
	Question:

Regarding RFP VII.B.1.c.1 Form VII-6 Hardware Maintenance, please note that the bidder proposed hardware maintenance begins at order and there is no annual increase in the maintenance.

Is this acceptable to the DPR?
	No. The hardware maintenance begins after the warranty period end.   
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